
UNITED STATES 
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) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
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Docket No. EPCRA-HQ-2007-6000 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

I. Preliminary Statement 

1. Complainant is the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("Complainant" or 
"EPA"). Respondent, for purposes of this Consent Agreement, consists of New Cingular 
Wireless PCS, LLC ("New Cingular"), its subsidiaries and the following affiliates: New 
Cingular Wireless Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries, AT&T Mobility II LLC and its 
subsidiaries, Beach Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries, AT&T Mobility 
Corporation, AT&T Operations, Inc., and AT&T Services, Inc. Having consented to the 
terms of this Consent Agreement ("Agreement"), and before the taking of any testimony 
and without the adjudication of issues of law or fact herein, Complainant and Respondent 
agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement and attached proposed Final Order 
hereby incorporated by reference. 

2. Respondent, as defined above, is a group of affiliated companies that now own or operate 
the facilities at issue in this Agreement, or for the purpose of this Agreement, are willing 
to resolve liability for those facilities that the companies no longer own or operate but 
were included in the disclosures to EPA that are described in Paragraphs 4 - 8 below. 
The total civil penalty agreed upon by the parties for settlement purposes is $125,728. 

3. On October 26, 2004, Cingular Wireless LLC ("CW" or "Cingular Wireless") acquired 
AT&T Wireless Services, Inc. ("AWS"); AWS had a subsidiary known as AT&T 
Wireless PCS, LLC, which, on that date, was renamed New Cingular Wireless PCS, 
LLC, one of the companies included within Respondent, as described in Paragraph 1. 
The facilities that CW and its affiliates owned or operated prior to acquisition (the 
"legacy CW sites") have since been transferred to New Cingular or the other entities 
comprising Respondent, or were sold or transferred to unrelated third parties. 

4. Subsequent to the acquisition, Respondent undertook an audit ofthe legacy CW sites for 
past compliance with the chemical reporting requirements in sections 311 and 312 of the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act ("EPCRA"), 42 U.S.C. 



'. 

§§ 11021 -11022. On March 15,2005, pursuant to EPA's Policy on Incentives/or Self 
Policing: Discovery, Disclosure, Correction and Prevention of Violations ("Audit 
Policy"), 65 Fed. Reg. 19,618 (April 11, 2000), Respondent submitted its initial voluntary 
disclosure to EPA regarding potential violations of the preceding EPCRA sections that 
had occurred at legacy CW sites. 

5. Respondent submitted an update on September 2,2005, in response to EPA's letter dated 
August 2, 2005, and a final audit report on October 10, 2005 ("2005 Final Audit 
Report"). In the 2005 Final Audit Report, Respondent reported 131 legacy CW sites with 
potential EPCRA section 311 and 312 violations for Reporting Years 2001 through 2003. 
Respondent also provided additional information in letters dated May 29,2006; July 14, 
2006; and September 1, 2006. 

6. While discussions concerning the 2005 Final Audit Report were proceeding between the 
parties, Respondent voluntarily initiated a comprehensive data validation in January 2007 
("2007 EPCRA Audit") to determine the accuracy of its equipment inventory for its 
facilities and to correct any data discrepancies. Respondent initiated this review as part 
of an effort to improve its compliance management system. Pursuant to that process, in 
May 2007, Respondent notified EP A that it had identified some discrepancies in its 
inventory and data systems and that Respondent would be reporting additional EPCRA 
violations. 

7. In June and July 2007, Respondent reported to EPA that additional EPCRA violations 
had been discovered at several hundred sites and that it was preparing a Final 2007 Audit 
Report. 

8. On April 18, 2008, Respondent provided EPA with the Final 2007 Audit Report, which 
disclosed 511 sites with potential EPCRA section 311 and 312 violations for Reporting 
Years 2004 through 2006, and sought penalty mitigation under EPA's Audit Policy for 
these violations. Respondent also disclosed potential EPCRA section 311 and 312 
violations that occurred from Reporting Years 2001 through 2003 at 32 legacy CW sites, 
in addition to the 131 legacy CW sites referenced above that Respondent disclosed to 
EPA in 2005. EPA and Respondent agree that the violations that occurred from 
Reporting Years 2001 through 2003 at these 32 legacy CW sites do not qualify for 
penalty mitigation under EPA's Audit Policy because Condition 3 of the Audit Policy, 
which requires prompt disclosure of potential violations, was not met. Respondent 
sought penalty mitigation for these disclosed violations under the Final Enforcement 
Response Policy for Sections 304, 311 and 312 of EPCRA and Section 103 0/ CERCLA 
(September 30, 1999). 

9. All such disclosures, which are the subject of this Agreement, have resulted in a final 
comprehensive list of violations compiled in Attachments A and B, hereby incorporated 
by reference. Attachment A lists the sites with potential EPCRA violations that were 
disclosed to EPA in the 2005 Final Audit Report as well as the sites disclosed in the 
letters of May, July and September 2006 and the 2007 Final Audit Report, all of which 
qualify for Audit Policy treatment. Attachment B lists the thirty-two (32) legacy CW 
sites disclosed to EPA on April 18, 2008 for which the violations occurring from 2001 
through 2003 do not qualify for Audit Policy treatment. 
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II. Jurisdiction 

10. The parties agree to the commencement and conclusion of this cause of action by 
issuance of this Agreement, as prescribed by EPA's Consolidated Rules of Practice 
Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or 
Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, and more specifically by 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b). 

11. Respondent agrees that Complainant has jurisdiction to bring an administrative action, 
based upon the facts which Respondent disclosed, for these violations and for the 
assessment of civil penalties from Respondent pursuant to EPCRA § 325, 
42 U.S.C. § 11045. 

12. Respondent hereby waives its right to request a judicial or administrative hearing on any 
issue of law or fact set forth in this Agreement and its right to seek judicial review of the 
proposed Final Order accompanying this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed 
as a waiver of the right to any administrative proceeding for, or judicial review of, any 
action taken by EP A to enforce this Agreement. 

13. For purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits that EPA has jurisdiction over the 
subject matter that is the basis of this Agreement. 

14. Respondent neither admits nor denies the conclusions oflaw as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

III. Statements of Fact 

15. New Cingular is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware. 

16. Pursuant to the EPA's Audit Policy, Respondent hereby certifies and warrants as true for 
all sites listed in Attachment A the following facts upon which this Agreement is based: 

A. The violations were discovered through an audit; 

B. The violations were discovered voluntarily; 

C. Both the initial and subsequent violations were disclosed to EPA promptly and 
in writing; 

D. The violations were disclosed prior to commencement of an agency inspection 
or investigation, notice of a citizen suit, filing of a complaint by a third party, 
reporting of the violations by a "whistle blower" employee, or imminent 
discovery by a regulatory agency; 

E. The violations have been corrected in accordance with Paragraph 39.A. of this 
Agreement, and therefore Respondent is, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
in full compliance with EPCRA sections 311-312, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11021-11022, 
and the implementing regulations, with respect to the violations set forth in this 
Agreement; 
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F. Appropriate steps have been taken to prevent a recurrence of the violations; 

G. Except for the violations set forth in this Agreement, the specific violations (or 
closely related violations) identified in Attachment A have not occurred within 
three years before the date of disclosure identified in Paragraphs 4 - 8 above, at 
the same facilities that are the subject of this Agreement, and have not occurred 
within five years prior to the date of disclosure identified in Paragraph 4 - 8 
above, as part of a pattern at multiple facilities owned or operated by Respondent. 
For the purposes of subparagraph G, a violation is: 

(a) any violation of federal, state, or local environmental law identified in 
a judicial or administrative order, consent agreement or order, complaint, 
or notice of violation, conviction or plea agreement; or 

(b) any act or omission for which the regulated entity has previously 
received penalty mitigation from EPA or a state or local agency; 

H. The violations have not resulted in serious actual harm nor presented an 
imminent and substantial endangerment to human health or the environment and 
did not violate the specific terms of any judicial or administrative Final Order or 
Agreement; and 

I. Respondent has cooperated as requested by EPA. 

IV. Conclusions of Law 

17. For purposes of this Agreement, Respondent is a group of persons as defined in 
EPCRA § 329(7),42 U.S.C. § 11049(7), each of which is the owner or operator of 
facilities as defined in EPCRA section 329(4), 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 

18. Section 311(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11021(a), and the regulations found at 40 C.F.R. 
Part 370, require the owner or operator of a facility that is required to prepare or have 
available a material safety data sheet ("MSDS") for a hazardous chemical under the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970,29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq., ("OSH Act") and 
regulations promulgated under the OSH Act, to submit the MSDS, or in the alternative, a 
list of chemicals to the appropriate Local Emergency Planning Committee ("LEPC"), the 
State Emergency Response Commission ("SERC"), and the fire department with 
jurisdiction over the facility by October 17, 1987, or within three months of first 
becoming subject to EPCRA section 311 requirements. 

19. Section 312(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11022(a), and the implementing regulations found 
at 40 C.F.R. Part 370, require the owner or operator of a facility that is required to 
prepare or have available an MSDS for a hazardous chemical under the OSH Act, and 
regulations promulgated under the OSH Act, to prepare and submit an emergency and 
hazardous chemical inventory form containing the information required by the 
regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 370 to the appropriate LEPC, SERC, and the fire department 
with jurisdiction over the facility by March 1, 1988, (or March 1 ofthe first year after the 
facility first becomes subject to EPCRA section 312 requirements) and annually 
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thereafter. The inventory form contains "Tier I" or "Tier II" information, pursuant to 
section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11022, and 40 C.F.R. Part 370. 

20. Respondent's facilities are "facilities," as defined in section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 11049(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 370.66, and subject to section 312 of EPCRA and 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

21. Diesel fuel, lead and sulfuric acid are "hazardous chemicals," as defined in sections 
311(e) and 329(5) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11021(e), 11049(5), and 40 C.F.R. §370.66. 
Sulfuric acid is also listed, in the appendices to 40 C.F.R. Part 355, as an "extremely 
hazardous substance" ("EHS"), as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 370.66. 

22. As set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 370.10(a)(2), the reporting threshold amount for hazardous 
chemicals present at a facility at anyone time during the preceding calendar year is ten 
thousand (10,000) pounds. The reporting thresholds, therefore, for diesel fuel and lead 
are ten thousand (10,000) pounds. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 370.1O(a)(1), the reporting 
threshold for "extremely hazardous substances" present at a facility is five hundred (500) 
pounds or the threshold planning quantity ("TPQ") as defined in 40 C.F.R. Part 355, 
whichever is lower. The TPQ for sulfuric acid is one thousand (1,000) pounds. The 
reporting threshold for sulfuric acid, therefore, is five hundred (500) pounds. 

23. The information supplied by Respondent for the sites listed in the 2007 Final Audit 
Report indicated that for varying lengths of time during calendar years 2004, 2005 and 
2006, Respondent had the extremely hazardous substance sulfuric acid and/or the 
hazardous chemicals diesel fuel and/or lead in excess of the reporting threshold amounts, 
present at the facilities listed in Attachment A. 

24. The information supplied by Respondent for legacy CW sites in its 2005 and 2007 audit 
self-disclosures indicated that for varying lengths of time during calendar years 2001, 
2002 and 2003, Respondent had the extremely hazardous substance sulfuric acid and/or 
the hazardous chemicals diesel fuel and/or lead in excess ofthe reporting threshold 
amounts, present at the facilities listed in Attachments A and B. 

25. For purposes of this Agreement, Complainant hereby states and alleges that, based on the 
information supplied by Respondent to EPA, Respondent has violated the following 
requirements: 

A. EPCRA section 311(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11021(a), and the regulations found at 
40 C.F.R. Part 370, by failing to timely submit an MSDS for a hazardous 
chemical(s) or, in the alternative, a list of such chemicals, and/or an update with 
three months of new reporting information for 525 facilities, to the LEPC, SERC, 
and the fire department with jurisdiction over these facilities, identified in 
Attachments A and B; and 

B. EPCRA section 312(a), 42 U.S.C. § 11022(a), and the regulations found at 
40 C.F.R. Part 370, at 641 facilities, by failing to prepare and submit emergency 
and chemical inventory forms to the LEPC, the SERC, and the fire department 
with jurisdiction over each facility, identified in Attachments A and B. 
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V. Civil Penalty 

26. EPA agrees, based upon the facts and information submitted by Respondent and upon 
Respondent's certification herein to the veracity of this information, that Respondent has 
satisfied all of the conditions set forth in the Audit Policy and thereby qualifies for a 
100% reduction of the gravity component of the civil penalty that otherwise would apply 
for the 642 sites listed in Attachment A. Complainant alleges that the gravity component 
of the unmitigated civil penalty ordinarily would have been $6,707,924. EPA alleges that 
this gravity component is potentially assessable against Respondent for these violations. 
Pursuant to the Audit Policy, EPA will waive 100% of the gravity-based penalties 
assessed for violations at the 642 sites listed in Attachment A. 

27. Pursuant to the mitigation factors found in the Final Enforcement Response Policy for 
Sections 304, 311 and 312 of EPCRA and Section 103 of CERCLA (September 30, 1999), 
EPA has calculated a gravity component civil penalty of $67,963 for the 32 sites listed in 
Attachment B that did not qualify for penalty mitigation under EPA's Audit Policy. 

28. Under the Audit Policy, EPA has discretion to assess a penalty equivalent to the 
economic benefit Respondent gained as a result of its noncompliance. Based on 
information provided by Respondent and use of the Economic Benefit ("BEN") computer 
model, EPA has determined that Respondent obtained an economic benefit of $57,765 as 
a result of its noncompliance in this matter for all the sites listed in Attachments A and B. 
Accordingly, the total civil penalty agreed upon by the parties for settlement purposes is 
$125,728. 

VI. Terms of Settlement 

29. Respondent agrees to pay, within thirty (30) calendar days of issuance of the Final Order 
(i.e., the effective date of this Consent Agreement and attached Final Order), ONE 
HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND SEVEN HUNDRED AND TWENTY­
EIGHT DOLLARS ($125,728.00) in satisfaction of the civil penalty. 

30. For payment of the civil penalties, Respondent shall pay the amount of ONE HUNDRED 
TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND SEVEN HUNDRED AND TWENTY-EIGHT 
DOLLARS ($125,728.00) using one of the following instructions: 

A. Via U.S Postal Service regular mail of a certified or cashier's check, made 
payable to the "United States Treasury," sent to the following address: 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
Post Office Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

B. Via overnight delivery of a certified or cashier's check, made payable to 
the "United States Treasury," sent to the following address: 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
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u.s. Bank 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
St. Louis, MO 63101 

The U.S. Bank customer service contact for both regular mail and 
overnight delivery is Natalie Pearson, who may be reached at 314-418-
4087. 

C. Via electronic funds transfer ("EFT") to the following account: 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
Account Number: 68010727 
ABA Number: 021030004 
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York, NY 10045 

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 
Environmental Protection Agency-New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
Docket No. EPCRA-HQ-2007-6000." 

The Federal Reserve customer service contact may be reached at 
212-720-5000. 

D. Via automatic clearinghouse ("ACH"), also known as Remittance Express 
("REX"), to the following account: 

PNC Bank 
ABA No. 05136707 
Environmental Protection Agency 
Account 31006 
CTXFormat 
Transaction Code 22 - checking 
808 1 i h Street NW 
Washington, D.C. 20074 

The PNC Bank customer service contact, Jesse White, may be reached at 
301-887-6548. 

E. Via on-line payment (from bank account, credit card, debit card): 

Website: www.pay.gov 
Enter "SFO 1.1" in the search field. 
Open the form and complete the required fields (marked with an asterisk). 
Under "Type of Payment," choose "Civil Penalty." Under "Invoice#" 
type "New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, Docket No. HQ-2007-6000" into 
the "Court # or Bill #" subfield. 
Leave the other subfields blank. Under "Installments?" choose "No." 
Under "Region," type "HQ." 
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31. New Cingular shall forward evidence of the checks, wire transfers, and/or internet-based 
payments to EPA, within five (5) days of payment, to the attention of: 

Mike Calhoun 
Special Litigation and Projects Division (2248-A) 
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Pennsylvania Ave, N.W. 
Ariel Rios Building, Room 3119C 
Washington, DC 20460; and 

Clerk, Environmental Appeals Board 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
MC II03B 
Ariel Rios 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20460 

32. Respondent's obligation under this Agreement shall end when it has paid the civil 
penalties in accordance with this Section of this Agreement. 

33. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts 
owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date 
of entry of the Final Order, if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be 
assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 40 
C.F.R. § 13.11. A charge will be assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, including 
processing and handling costs and attorney fees. In addition, a penalty charge of twelve 
(12) percent per year compounded annually will be assessed on any portion of the debt 
that remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

34. As part of this Agreement, and in satisfaction of the requirements of the Audit Policy, 
Respondent has certified to certain facts, as delineated in Section III, Paragraph 16 of this 
Agreement. The parties agree that, should EPA receive information that proves or 
demonstrates that these facts are other than as certified by Respondent, the portion of this 
Agreement pertaining to the affected facility or facilities, including mitigation of the 
proposed penalty, may be voided, or this entire agreement may be declared null and void 
at Complainant's election, and EPA may proceed with an enforcement action. 

35. The parties agree that Respondent preserves all of its rights should this Agreement be 
voided in whole or in part. The parties further agree that Respondent's obligations, 
agreements and waivers under this Agreement will cease, and be null and void with no 
effect, should this Agreement be rejected by the Environmental Appeals Board ("EAB"). 
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VII. Reservation of Rights and Settlement 

36. This Agreement and the Final Order, when issued by the EAB, and upon payment by 
Respondent of civil penalties in accordance with Section VI shall resolve only the civil 
and administrative claims specified in Paragraph 25. Nothing in this Agreement and the 
Final Order shall be construed to limit the authority of EPA and/or the United States to 
undertake any action against Respondent, in response to any condition which EPA or the 
United States determines may present an imminent and substantial endangern;lent to the 
public health, welfare, or the environment. Furthermore, issuance of the Final Order does 
not constitute a waiver by EPA and/or the United States of its right to bring an 
enforcement action, either civil or criminal, against Respondent for any other violation of 
any federal or state statute, regulation or permit. 

VIII. Other Matters 

37. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

38. The provisions ofthis Agreement and the Final Order, when issued by the EAB, shall 
apply to and be binding on the Complainant, and Respondent, as well as Respondent's 
officers, agents, successors and assigns. Any change in ownership or corporate status of 
Respondent including, but not limited to, any transfer of assets or real or personal 
property shall not alter Respondent's responsibilities under this Agreement, including the 
obligation to pay the civil penalty referred to in Section VI. 

39. Nothing in this Agreement shall relieve Respondent of the duty to comply with all 
applicable provisions of EPCRA, or other federal, state, or local laws or regulations, nor 
shall it restrict EPA's authority to seek compliance with any applicable laws, nor shall it 
be construed to be a ruling on, or a determination of, any issue related to any federal, 
state, or local permit. 

A. Although EPA is not requiring submission of inventory forms for previous 
reporting cycles in order to settle this matter, Respondent agrees to contact in 
writing, if it has not already done so, the SERC, or the equivalent entity delegated 
the authority specified in EPCRA § 301, 42 U.S.C. § 11001, for each State in 
which a facility is alleged to be in violation to determine whether submission of 
previous years of EPCRA § 312 inventory forms is required. This Agreement 
does not preclude or limit any state action regarding filing fees which may be 
owed or any other state action regarding Respondent's obligations under state 
law. 

40. For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled, 
and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to the Final Order. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments 
shall constitute a violation of the Agreement. 
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The undersigned representatives of each party to this Agreement certify that each is duly 
authorized by the party whom he represents to enter into these terms and bind that party to it. 

FOR Respondent: 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LtC 
By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 

It's. \Vf ger 
q &/.l <",.c: 12 22" '2c /.~£ "'"-" 

'-"" ~",,,,,~,,~-

Date 

New Cingular Wireless Services, Inc. 

AT&T Operations, Inc. 

Date 

1:21:3 ;It 

Date 

Date 

't.;: 2c 

Date 

FOR Complainant: 

. . 
t-----..-c-· -"-- """..-, 

'-... / Bernadette Rappold 

10 

Director, Special ........ 6"·."" 
Projects Division 
Offiee of Civil Enforcement 
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 



The undersigned representatives of each party to this Agreement certify that each is duly 
authorized by the party whom he represents to enter into these tenns and bind that party to it. 

FOR Respondent: 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 

It's Manager 

Date 

New Cingular Wireless Services, Inc. 

Date 

AT&T Mobility II LLC 
By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 

It's Manager 

Date 

Beach Holding Corporation 

Date 

AT&T Mobility Corporation 

Date 

AT&T Operations, Inc. 

~~~/2~2()"-/1 
PattIN. Wilsof) Date 

){is ;slant Secrt-ftry 
AT&T Services, Inc. 

Date 

FOR Complainant: 

'/ o r CJ\ V, ". f 
" "' • !~ ',J ~ r oi W" '/_1 Q' -" II r,,-l. /'! ~{;H'< ;f':. f j lQ 

lVBem;.dette Rappold' \l/j ) , Date 
Director, Special Litigat"K,n (uld 
Projects Division 
Office of Civil Enforcement 
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 
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"""2oQ1:2oii3 

m 
00 
'03 
00-

2004 - 2006 

'03 
2001-2003 

2006 
2006 

~005 - 2006 
106 
106 
106 
106 

2006 
2006 

20Q'5":"2006 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

2005 - 2006 

2006 
2006 
2006 

2005 - 2006 
~ 

2oii6 

2006 
2006 
2006 
2006 

x 

x 

x 
x 

x 
x 

X 
X 
x 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

CENTRAL & SOUTHERN 15802 S. CENTRAL AVENUE IPHOENIX IAZ 185041 ISUlf"ne Acid 200. - 2006 X 
_'8_..lS..RP BARLEIT SUBSTATION 17210 SOUTH 40TH STREET IPHOENIX IAZ 185042 IS"lf"ne Aei~_ 2005 - 2006 L X 
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62 IHAWLEY 
63 IE. HUNT HWY. & E. THISTLE TRL. 

64 ISOLOMAN 
TERl 

SCHOOL 
) WATER TANK 

LE 

\ VISTA-AAT GOLFLINKS 
WISTAAIRPORT 

AL 
73 ISIERRA VISTA ESTATES 
74 ISOUTH SIERRA ViSTA HIGHWAY 90 

75 160 & PRIES1 
76 REi 
77 91S· 

ORACLE 
ZA 

OR1 

;INC 
LERHEIGHTS 

~8~5~lfrp~A~R~KE~R~A~ND~12~2~5 
86 CAPITOL HILI 
87 Meriden Mobile SlNitching ( 
88 New Haven Mobile Switching i 
89 WEST NORWALK 
90 WILMINGTON MSC(5000) 

;GS 

96 IEGOW 
9i 
98 

99 IBCCO 
100 ICBCE 
101 IBCCW 

BBI 

- BOCA SPRINGS 
; REU 

109 IWl15 
110 IBCON 

111 ABNN 
112 WP44 - GULFSTREAM 
113 BBCN 
14 IFHH~ 

HIGHWAY 69 AND NORTH LEE I 

'FRANCiS 
10360 E GERMANN ROAD 

129697 N DESERT WILLOW BLVD. 
11655 SOUTH LARSON LANE 

13130 N. GRAHAM CEMETERY ROAD 
1350 W SAHUARITA ROAD 

IN DRIVE 
LE PEAK ROAD 

,VE. 

ONSANTO ROAD 

,AST LITTLE MICHIGAN AVENUE 
14315 S. PRIEST DR, TEMPE, AZ 85281 

3700 W. MAIN 
22100 S. 91ST AVENUE 

YAV 
L'lRY'S ROAD 
:;BLVD 

IVE 
ON DR. 

IANDLER HEIGHTS ROAD 

PARKER ROAD 
1303 WEST COLFAX 

7 Butler Street 
310 Orange Street 
40 RICHARDS AVENUE 
65 SOUTHGATE DRIVE 

LAKE I 
36:"-

;RESS AVENUE 

CAYNE BLVD 

191 Sl 
lAVE B SOUTH 

SPANISH ISLES BLVD. BLDG. lA BOCA COMMERCE P 

1150 EAST PALMETTO PARK ROAC 
150 NW 51ST ST 

1551 WEST CAMINO REAL 

I2500NW 1 AVE 
ITARYTRAIL 

:OA 
TERCIR 

8TH STREE1 
'GERS CIR. 

JIAANCHO RD 

ILADES ROAD 
1314 NEPTUNE DRIVE 
222 NE 9TH AVE 

300 WEST WOOLBRIGHT RD 
9740 BOYNTON BEACH I 

13105 COMMODORE PLAZA 
IUTHWEST 49TH STREE1 

IWY 

,ROAD 
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I QUEEN CREEK 
I QUEEN CREEK 

I SAFFORD 
,AFFORD 
,AHUARIl 
iAINTDA' 

IERRA' 
IERRA' 
IERRA' 

iSIERRA' 

iSIERRA VISTA 
TEMPE 

rCHER 
.ESON 

~ 
IAZ 
IAZ 
'.l 

IAZ 
IAZ 
IAZ 

IAURORA Ico 

IDENVER ICO 
Meriden 
INewHaven 

VEl 

m 
;ASTLE 

ONTE SPRINGS 
ONTE SPRINGS 

IAVENTURA IFL 

~GLADE IFL 
BOCA RATON FL 

IBOCA RATON IFL 
I BOCA RATON I FL 

CA RATON 
:ARA' 

RA' 
RA' 
RA' 

-RA' 
IRA' 

OCARA' 

IBOCA RA' 
IBOYNTON BEACH IFL 
BOYNTON BEACH FL 

BOYNTON BEACH FL 
BOYNTON BEACH FL 
COCONUT GROVE 

ER 
ORAL GABLES 
ORAL GABLES 

ORAL GABLES 
CORAL SPRINGS 

86301 

88303 

185242 
185242 

185546 
185546 

5650 
185635 

185281 
85552 
85353 

14 
80204 
06450 

06510 
6854 
19720 

13430 

33498 
133432 
133431 
133486 

133434 
33426 

33435 
33435 
3343i 

1331, 

Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

~cid 

ISulfuricAc 

ISulfuric Ac 
ISulfuric Aci 
ISulfuric Acid 

\cid 
\cid 

furicAc 

ISulfuric Ac 
ISulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Lead 

~ 

furicAci 
~ 
~ 
'UlfcAc 
'uric Ac 

ISulfuric Ac 
Sulfuric Ac: 
Sulfuric Aci 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

~cjd 

'uricAc 
ISulfuric Ac 
ISulfuric Ac 
ISulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

~id 

furicAc 

2065-~2006 

""2iiOO 
2006 

2006 
2006 
2006 

20m 
2005 - 2006 

2005 -2006 
2005 - 2006 

2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

2006 
2006 

2005 - 2006 

2004 - 2006 
2004 - 2006 

!OOl-2003 
,001-2003 

~ 

,006 

2006 
2006" 
2006 
2006 

2005 - 2006 

2006 
2006 

2006 
2006" 
2006" 

2005 - 2006 

x 
X 
x 

X 

x 
x 
x 
x 
x 

x 
x 

x 
x 
x 
x 

X 

x 
x 
x 

x 

x 



KYN 

IGXYE 
Iyzws 

IXYZE 
DEX 

126 IDEXW 
127 IBCOE 

128 IBCO 
IP95 - DELRAY POLICE 

OS 

'26-LlNTON 

ON 

DEE 

IDEXN 
137BROWARD CONVENTION CENTER 

138 IFL60 - ANDREWS 

i39 

CC 
DOEN 

148 CDDX 

149 CDDO 

150 I DIMSC(l a) 
151 ICDOO(34) 

i52 

159 IGEFG 

160 IGMEF 

161 IGMEG 
CBEE 

IJJHE 
[JPJP 

17'3 
174 IJJPp 

75 IpSFM 

76 IJHAN 

EY 
79 IMTSO JAX 2(0) 

LAKES 

80 IMTSOJAX(004) 

I SOUTH NOB HilL ROAD 

100 SLYDGEMILL RD 

161 
l PE 
3 SOUTHWEST 45TH STREEl 

16575 NOVA DRV 

1111 EAST ATLANTIC AVENUE 
11500 SOUTHWEST 7TH STREEl 

I ATLANTIC AVE 
INGRESS AVE 
ON BLVD #300 

TIC AVE 
PY HOLLOW RD 

!i"Sl'AiiE 

1S00fRWESTfSfAVENUE 

1950 EISENHOWER BOULEVARD 
!2500 SW 2ND AVE. 

1305 SOUTH ANDREWS SUITE 303 
13131 SE 14TH AVE 
1320 TERMINAL DRIVE 

STATE RD 7 SUITE 476 

OAD 
HWY9TH 

Tii=i"WAi 

NW 
888 EAST LAS OLAS 

909 BREAKERS AVE 

7TH AVENUE 

11841 NW22NDSTREEl 

EAST 7TH STREEl 
, STREEl 

;90 W 20TH AVE 

900 wEsf4slHSTRITl 
3114 SOUTH OCEAN I 

1921 NORTH 14TH AVENUE 
2106 MAYO ST 

2940 TAFT STRI 
28TH TERRACE 

10Ae 

iffi 

195 SW 248TH 1 

3SW5THAVE 
114202 SW 256TH ST 
129000 SOUTH DIXIE HWY 

135340 SOUTH KROME AVE 
ONE SPEEDWAY BLVD 
7800 CORAL STREEl 

IMM8i 
1096 Dennis st. 
120 StepP Avenue 
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I DELRAY BEACH 
lELRAY BEACH 
)ELRAY BEACH 

'AC 
'AC 

IALE­

FORT LAUDERDALE 
FORT LAUDERDALE 
I FORT LAUDERDALE 
IFORT LAUDERDALE 

)RT LAUDERDALE 

)RT LAUDERDALE 

LAU 

LAUDERDALE 
LAUDERDALE 

)ALE 

IHtA 
HIALEAH 
HIGHLAND BEACH 

IHOLLYWOOD 

Noe 
(HOMESTEAD 

I HOMESTEAD 
IHOMESTEAD 
I HOMESTEAD 

IHOMESTEAD 
10MESTEAD 
YPO 

LAMORADA 
Jacksonvi 
lacksonvi 

IFL 
IFL 
IFL 

IFL 
IFL 
IFL 
IFL 
IFL 

IFL 
IFL 
1Ft: 

IFL 
1Ft: 
IFL 
IFL 

IFL 
iFL 

[333il 
133483 
133444 

1311 

333ii 
133315 
133301 

I333i 
133: 

1301 

i3304 
[333i" 
33321 
3341 

3016 
33012-

3348; 
33020 
33020 
331 

33030 

133032 
133033 
133034 

I33i 
I3J. 
I33i 

:3:ulfl..If 
Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuricAcid 

furicAc' 

SuifUi 
ISulfUric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

furicAcid 
fU!!£...Acid 

riC) 

Sulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
Lead 

ISulfuric Acid 
'WiCAcid 
uriC) 

ISulfuric Acid 
~ 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

;riCAcid 

)ulfur 
ISulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuriC Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
Leal 
Lea( 

~006 

2006 
2006 
2001 

~006 

2006 
2006 

2006 
2006 

2001-2003 
2001-2003 

"'2oii6 

2006 

"'2oii6 
2006 

""2006 
"'2oii6 

106 

2006 
2006 

2005 -2006 

2006 
2006 

2006 
2002-20 
2001-2003 

x 
x 
x 

x 
x 
x 
x 

x 

x 

~ 
X 

X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

x 
x 
X 
X 

X 
X 



187 IB~KEY 
188 IUEKEY 
189 IEKEY 

LAKE MARY (0) 

0(7) 

~ JD.xl~ 
1991wP41 
200 ICKEY 
201 ICDlS 
202 IHJX-l(28) 

0-2(29) 
iJO(9) 

IJX.GSM 
209 IGHDP 
210 IGHSW 
211, IHFOX 

_212 IGHFI 
213 IHJRG 

HW 
HS 
FG 

is 
222 IFFEE 
223 HJXW 
224 HKLP 
225 IEFGC 
226 IGHLA 

234 IEHES.GSM 
235 IFFOB 

~jI1JClJ( 
237 IF5 
238 IEGGIi('-
239 IHJWP 
240 IFFHC 
241 IFEGM 

::WMI 

NEDRV 
~ 

1525 SOUTf:lARD STREE1 
IMM 0 NAvy BASE, COAST GUA 
1500 TECHNOLOGY PARK DR 
18735 NORTH MILITARY TRAIL 
1600 S. MILITARY TRAIL 

~YTRAIL 

LVDUNITH 
DR' 
r21STST~EEi 

785 HILL AVE 

~~ 
101 N ROCK ISLAND RD 
10400 SW 185TH TERRACE 

112224 SW 114TH PLACE 
18514 SW 129TH TERRACE 

DIXIE HIGHWA) 

)Sl 

TERRACE 
)Sl 

C§l ,w 97TH AVE 

110901 SW 24TH ST 
:i()11 SW 104TH ST, BLDG 6000 

11401 SW 40TH ST 
11600 NW 41 Sl 

=WA) 

DRV 
~IV 

13701 S()Ul1iVEST 88TH STREE1 

114450 NE_:!IlTH LANE 
i4~11 SW 42ND Sl 
11500 SW 57TH AVE 
115620 SW 136TH Sl 

IAI 
IAI 
AVI 

AVE. 

I 47TH AVE 
11942 NWMIAMI 
~NW57THAVE 
120425 OLD CUTLER ROAD 
12103 CORAL WA) 

70NWll Sl 
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SCAYNE 
SCAYNE 
IRGO 

IKEYLARGO 
IKEYWEST 
IKEYWEST 

ANA 
LAUDERDALE LAKES 

IMANGONIA PARK 
I MARATHON 
I MARGATE 
IMIAMI 

IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 

IMIAMI 
MIAMI 
MIAMI 

IMIAMI 
IMIA 

"AM, 
MIAMI 

IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 

IFL 
[F'L 
IFL 

IfL 
IFL 
IFL 
IFf. 

458 

133176 

133037 
133001 
133040 
133040 

33462 
3331' 

133407 
133050 
1331 
133 

133157 
133172 

~4 
133176 
133165 
133 

133146 

~~ 
33170 
33186 

133181 

.. 
~ 
~3015 
L33L35 
133187 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

'uric Acid 
'uric Acid, Lead 
'uric Acid 
'uric Acid 

~ulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
iulfuric Acid 
iulfuric Acid 

furic Acid, Lead 
furicAcid 
furicAcid 
furic Acid 

IfuricAcid 
L~_u_lfuric Acid 
ISulfuric ~_cid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Ac' 
ISulfuric Ac' 

iulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric AcicL 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuriC Acid 
ISulfuric Acic 

ISulfuric Acid 
iSulfuric AcJ~ 
Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Ac' 

2006 
2006 
2006 

To06 
_~006 

- 2006 

20 

20 

006 
2006 

2006 
- 2006 

2001-2003 
2oii2To03 
2001-2002 

2006 
2006 
2006 
2006 
2006 

,006 
,006 

2006 
2006 

- 2006 

!006 
2006 
2006 

-2006 
-2006 
-2006 

2005 - 2006 

x 
I 
x 

X 
x 

-"'-x 
x 
x 
x 

X 

x 
x 

X 
x 
x 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 
X 

X 



3H 

250 IBANYAN 
251 IFFOX 

252 IFFGM 
253 IFFcg 
254 IFHOO 

(, LAKE CATALINA 

262 IBIRD ROAD, MI56 

263 IEGMG 
264 IEFGE 

265 IEGFE 
266 IGEGX 

IHJXO 

275 IFGH 
276 GFGH 

277 MI44 
278 IFHJS 
279 IGHEG 
!80 IGEGW 

287 IFG( 
288 IFEFG 

289 GHW 
290 FHOG 
291 IUMM5 

MI99 
FGHE 

FIB 
OF 

OS 

FO 
299 IGEML 
300 IM139 
301 FFEF 

302 NORTH I 

12500 NW 21ST TERRACE 
12526 WEST FLAGI 
12575 SOUTH BAYSHORE DRIVE 

i Sl 
!AVENUE 
,Wi 

rHS1 
133 SW 2ND AVE 
13661 SOUTH MIAMI AVE 

1381 NE 61ST ST 
13895 NW 25TH AVE 
13898 SHIPPING AVE 

lSTSTREE1 
liE 
WE 

) NE 191 Sl 

15272 NW 163RD Sl 

iS601 SW 135TH AVE #111 
15844 NW 183RD Sl 
16262 SUNSET DRV 
5330 BIRe 

THAVE 

IS1 
{36TH ST,#295 

r 12Ti1 STREE' 
17300 SW 87 AVE 

17320 NW61ST Sl 
17851 NW 165TH Sl 
18425 BISCAYNE BLVd 

'ERRACE 
'REEl 

IE 
'RRACE 

7 AVE 
190 EDGEWATER DRV 

L944 BISCAYNE BLVD 
19455 NW 40TH Sl 
19570 SW 40TH ST,UNIT 956 

6TH AVE UNl1 
7TH Sl 
IRI 

IRD 

BARN RD 
ISTREEl 

; NW36TH Sl 

l!s1.1J'lSTATE ROAD 
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IMIAMI 

IMIAMI 

IMIAMI 
IMIA~ 

IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 

MIAMI 

MIAMI 
IMIAMI 
IMIAMI 

IMIAM 

MIAMI 
MIAMI 
IMIAMI 

EAC 
EAC 
EAC 
EAC 

EAC 
IAMI LAKES 

IAMI SHORES 
MIAMI SPRINGS 

NORTH 

IFL 
IFL 
IFL 

IFL 
IFL 

IFL 

lFh 
[FL 

If'L 
IFL 

IFL 

~5 
~ 
133133 
13313] 
133142 

168 
33j79 

[33014 
133183 

3312i 
33126-

133173 
133166 
133016 

133127 
33185 
33133 

133132 

11i. 
133138 
33166 

33068 

furicAcid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
~!LlJ!i_cAcid 
:Sulfuric Acid 
:Sul 

,ulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric~~i~ 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfur" 

ISulfuril? __ ~~_id_ 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
;Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
~_~_cAcjd 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

~cid 

ISulfuric Acid 

~l!!!!i_~Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

2006 
2006 

2006 
2006 
2006 

2006 

2006 
2006 
2006 

2006 

2006 
2006 
2006 
2006 

2006 

2006 
2006 
2006 

2006 
2006 

, 2006 

2006 

x 
x 
x 

x 
x 

x 
x 
x 
x 
x 

x 
x 

X 
x 

x 
x 
x 
x 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 



IEFSS 17020 RUE~GRANVILLE iNORTH MIAMI IFL 1331SilSuWuricAcid 2006 
IEFOX 1835 NE 132ND ST INORTH MIAMI IFL 133181 ISulfuric Acid 2006 
IEFG$ 113660 COLLINS AVE I NORTH MIAMI BEACH IFL 133160 ISulfuric Acid 2006 
IEGGO 116701 COLLINS AVE I NORTH MIAMI BEACH 
IWP62 - LAKE SHORE 1840 US HIGHWAY 1 I NORTH PALM BEACH 
DDCN 1592 NE 42 CT 10AKLAND PARK 

311 10KEE 1265 NE 34TH AVENUE lOKI 
312 IEGGX 112900 NW 32NDAVE 10PA LOCKA 
313 IMTSO ORLANDO(1) __ ~ 11309 S DIVISION AVE;. LQf'LANDC 
314 10RLANDO MTSO 11320 S ATLANTA AVE JOBLANDC 

CB SMITH PARK 

l BEACH 
)XO 

L81 - PALM AIR 
IDKEY 

323 IAARP 
324 IWABASSO ORCHID --_._. --
325 IFP05 
326 EFBH 
327 MTSO-

JR 
04 

7105 NORTON AVE IPALM BEACH 
iWILLIAM T DWYER HIGH SCH ~~ ---- PALM BEACH I 

I SW 129TH AVE PEMBROKE PI 
j127 NW 16TH ST 
,1600 S FEDERAL HWY SUITE 1150 

HH RIVERSIDE DRIVE 
·URNPIKE MILE MARKER #65 

;restwood Blvd. North 
20 64TH AVENUE 
) SOUTHEAST MONTEREY ROAD 

19511 COLLINS AVE 
.:!'Q~1_~--';~st_~lumbus Drive 
188770 OVERSEAS HIGHWAY 
16TH STREET/82ND AVE 
13420 SOUTH SHORE BOULEVARD 

Royal Palm Beach 
SEBASTIAN 

TUARl 
ISURFSIDE 
Tampa 
TAVERNIER 

,AC 

DENS 

BB - PALM BEACH LAKES ,ACH LAKES BLVD #840 eACH 

334 IDDCS 
335 IWEST MTSO 
336 IWindwarn (000) ~ 
337 IGA4121 HAYNES BRIDGE MS 
338 IGA4092 ATLAGA0725 

,A41 

'07~ 

PRESTON RIDGE GSM 
MANSELL ROAD GSM 
~ ALPHARETTA GSM 

CGINNIS FERRY GSM 
·LANTAATHLETIC CLUB 

9 ATLAGA0714 
~GSM 

347 s.;;;- Hill(3064) 
348 RC 
349 3111 NMT NORTH MIDTOWN 
350 3156 CLAIRE GSM 
351 3188 _BLVD 

, HILLS 

DEKALB HOSPITAL 

)CHEE 

DA ABERNATHY 
OFDZZ SIX FLAGS 

359 13134 FYR FAYETTEVILLE GSM 
360 3189 GT GEORGIA TECH 
361 GA4062 FBE RIVERWOOD HIGH SCHOOL 
362 14130 ABBDBD S~Y SPRINGS 

~ 363 IGA6160 STING YELLOW JACKEl 

>RD 

IXIE HIGHWAY 

ingularWay 
l665 HAYNES BRIDGE RD 

11554 JONESBRIDGE RD 
1291QHWY9 
1355 OLD ROSWELL RD 
1400 MANUEL LANE 

13460 PRESTON RIDGE RD BLD III ROOFTOP 
IWE 
TATI DGERD 
5NE ""iGERii 

tone Road SW 

LENRIDGE DR 
lEST PEACHTREE STREEl 

1275 PRYOR RD 
1161 SPRINGST NW 
2370 VERBENA 
2431 FLATSH ,R[ 

12497 FO 

1NW 

OAD NORTHEASl 
1NE 
PKWY SE 
IW 

>SW 
,RD 

l ROSWELL_I<[) NE 
~5THSTNW 
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)haretta 
)haretta 

lEACH 
eACH 

DRS 

LPHARETTA 
-----

IALPHARETTA 
IALPHARETTA 
IALPHARE 
IALPHARETTA 

tanta 

iaiita 
lANTA 
'i:iiNi'A 
·LANTA 
·LAN 

~TLANTA 

HLANTA 
HLANTA 
HLANTA 

FL 
FL 
FL 
FL 
FL 
FL 

~ 
IGA 
IGA 
IGA 

iA 
GA 
GA 

~ 
[GA 
IGA 
[GA-

34972 
33054 
32806 
32806 
33480 
33418 
33027 

l2958 
,", 

33154 

33619 
133070 
1321 

!30022 
}O()12 
130004 
130023 
130022 

309 
30m 
30314 

130314 

l28 
[30328 
130308 

Sulfuric Acid 

Sulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Sulfune Acid 

Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

Sulfuric Acid 

::;Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid_ 

[Sulfuric Acid 
Lead 
[Sulfuric Acid 

Leae 
IDiesel 

ISulfuric A~_ 
[Sulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acic 
[Sulfuric Ac· 
[Sulfuric Ac: 

Leae 
Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Sulfuric Acid 

Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
'Sulfuric 

Sulfuric Acid 

Sulfuric A~(~L 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

2001-2003 
2006 
2006 
2006 
2006 

2006 
2001-2()03 

2006 
2006 
2006 

2001-2003 
2002-2003 

2005 - 2006 

2~~_2Q()6 
105 - 2006 
105 - 2006 

-2006 

20 

20 
2005 -2006 

2006 
l05 - 2006 

_lQ 
20' 

"""20: 
20()5- 2006 
2005 - 2006 

t 

.1 

X 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

x 
x 
x 
x 
x 

x 
X 
X 

x 
x 
X 



IGA3144 GRI 
ICO 

:UMMING 

5A: TSARENA 
DALE 

,RON SUWANEE CREEK 

374 13142 SPD SPRINGDALE GSM 
375 2214 ELLIJAY GSM 

376 3202 STC STOUFFER CONCOURSE GS 
377 2127 GBP GEORGE BUSBEE PKWY 
378 2188 BRC RELO BENT CREEK GSM 

POSPO 

ON 

NTER MALL GSM 
jGSM 

: SPRINGS GSM 
I TECH GSM 

WATER WATERWHEEL GSM 
387 12023 POT POST OAK TRITT GSM 
388 2120 MAW BLACKWEll 

389 2193 EWC EAST WEST 

390 14114 ACC PAPER MILL GSM 
391 IGA2152 ALLGOOD FIRE STATION 6 

:BC 
BLVI 

iNG 

MP 

1 GRID MOUNTAIN PARK 
398 14201 ABR ABERNATHY ROAD GSM 
399 14011 FOE FOE KILLER CREEK GSM 
400 4605 AD SMYRNA GSM 

401 GA36291129 TNNS 
402 3524 DESH DESHON 1024 
403 IGA35281028 BEC SOUTH STONE MOUNTAIN 

HNM B HENDERSON MILL B GS 

~SC 

3ROVE MTS0(7504) 
3E MTSO(0166) 

TS0(7501) 
:;0 (formerly South Michigan) 

411 BAUER BUILDING 
412 CLARENDON HILLS CEMETARY 

413 1150 SCHILLER ST 

4.!!. IpON' 
15 

ianacol 

l MTSO(0015) 

ONE - CENTRAL 

IWY 
CAGO MTSO(0260) 

10351 

424 IGRANTLINE 

125991 _RDNE 
16019 , OAD 

:NE 
,RD 

:err Drive 
LAWSTSE 

NORTH DECATUR RC 
1441 CLAIREMONT AVENUE 

2526 CHATAHOOCHIE DR 
2251 SYLVAN RO 
30 WALNUT MOUNTAIN RD 
3420 NORMAN BERRY DRIVE 

IARREl 

----cEO 

,TERA~ 

ENViEi 

WAl 

IALHIGHWAl 

IELLS FERRY ROAC 
)99 POWERS FERRY ROAD 

2100 SANDY PLAINS RD NE 
227 COBB PKWY NE 

2364 POWDER SPRINGS RD SW 
2886 SANDY PLAINS RD 

13163 CANTON RD NE 

EST FRIE 
iiVY85 

lSE 

) BLVD 

5RNW 
NvV 

lRDNW 

14890 OLD MOUNTAIN PARK RD NE 
;701 ROSWELL RD 

OLD HOLCOMB BRIDGE RD 
11609 CORN ROAD 

lE RD SW 
lRDSW 
,RO 

. SUITE 20 
HIGHWAY 

Barclay Blvd 
7501 Soper Rd 
1450 S Michigan Ave. 

11450 S. Michigan 
230 W. HURON STREEl 

16900 S. CASS AVENUE 

LERSl 
INOFRTEl16 
tateP~ -
~-

H1LLRD 
iWV12 

Carolina Drive 
2515 LINCOLN DRIVE 
1820 Midwest Blvd. 
I RIVERPOINT PLZ 

1747 OLD HAUSFELDT RD. 

Page7of11 

ORO 
on 
LEY 
MING 

ItfeCatur 
I DECATUR 

I DECATUR 
I DECATUR 
I DULUTH 

·POINl 

AY 

t:E 
AW 

)N 

IARIETTA 
IMARIETTA 

IMARIETTA 
MARIETTA 
MARIETTA 
IMARIETTA 

NORCROSS 

RIVERDALE 
ROSWEll 
:OSWELI 

IUE 

MOUNTAIN 
MoUNTAiN 
MOUNTAIN 

IBUFFALO GROVE 
IBURR RIDGE 
Chicago 
Chica 

CH 

RSl 

MBURG 

m 
·OR 

IVILLAPARK 
I WAUCONDA 

WEST CHICAGO 
CLARKSVILLE 
Indianapolis 

INEWALBANY 

[GA 
[GA 
[GA 

[GA 
[GA 
[GA 
[GA 
IGA 

~ 
~ 
[GA 
IGA 

IRI 
IRI 

[II'l. 
liN 
liN 
liN 

lOO: 
10037 

1033 
1030 

lOl: 
130060 
130066 
130067 
30062 
30061 

30093 

30093 
30071 
30093 

30274 
I07! 
I07! 

196753 

196766 
60089 

160527 
160605 

61364 
60181 

160084 
;0185 
i7i29 

146214 
130 
:;so 

Acid 
Acid 
Acid 
Acid 

Leae 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

cAcid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid 

Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

~cid 

ISulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Lead 

Lead 

Leae 

ISulfuric Acid 

Lead 

Lead 

Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Sulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

2005 -2006 

2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 
2001-2003 

2005 - 2006 

206 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

200 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

ToQS:2006 
----
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

20 :ooif 

2005 - 2006 

2Oo4To06 
To06 

2005 - 2006 
2001-20 
2001-20 

20 

2004 - 200if 

2004 - 2006 
2001-2003 

2"601To03 
2004 - 2006 
2004 - 2006 

2006 
20(,,-

20( 

x 
x 

X 
x 
x 

x 
X 
x 

X 
X 
x 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 



IRl 
Ci= 
~roperw\uJ 

026 GLENMAR) 
, MTSO(K002) 
lNE STREE1 

RD PLANl 

433 ILs1086 GRINSTEAC 
434 CRESCENT HILL 

435 LS1003 ST MATTHEWS 

436 QUILLMAN HILL 
437 LS1033 PORTLAND 

438 LS1088 U OF L 
,DALE 

,RS GSM 

PENN BRANCH 

lAIRPOR1 
445 I Louisville Staaina Area(KOOO) 
446 EV3402 JONES RC 
447 LXKT084 WINCHESTER SECTOR 

448 KROTZ 
449 COASTEL(L003) 

150 ILEBEAl 

ITSO(1002) 

TSO(0505) 

~ MD2 
458 CASH CREEK 
459 CRUMPTON MD2 
460 IVY LANE SWITCH(lvy Lane MTSO) 

461 WALKER 
462 IPARKWAY SWITCH 

(MD2 

WICOM \RK"M52 
Bloomfh , MTSO(001) 

Detroit I :0002) 

PENTA' 
469 GRANT COMMONS 

470 WOODSMILL Ml 
471 HURRYVILLE 

472 ,MTSO 

473 163 RD 
"IU'::N~C:"A~N"M:::T=S':'0:::(S::T~L~37~5~1 ) 

(Nil 

:harlotte 
:ale: 
iscataway 
TH& PAS 

RiiMiiVAY&i 
482 1 CARNUEL 

VH 
74~ 

!-80 
10) 

:-NORTE 

483 EUBANK & RESEARCH 

484 ISLETA 
485 MONTGOMERY & CARLISLE 

7801 FaMey 

2801 South Webb Road 
1960 Tower Rd 

120 CEDAR CREEK ROAD 

13503 Collle~e Drive 
10301 STONE STREET RI 

1901 WESTPORT RD 

1220 EOAKS1 
1839 FRANKFORT AVE 

245 N HUBBARDS LN 
2601 QUILLMAN HILL ROAD 
3108 LARKWOOD AV 

312 S FLOYD ST 
5100 U S HWY 42 

15252 CANE RU 
10LF PEN BRANCH RD 

MAF 

Locust Lane 
EMS GAS RD CEll 

13000 REVILO RD 

'.105, HWY 3175 

1228 LANDMARK Sl 
HWY 71 @ AVOYLLESI ST LANDRY PARISH LINE 

714 PHOSPHER AVE 
706 W WHATLEY RD 
580 Main Street 

anchard Road 
:Neil 1 

~ROAD 

1 JERICHO PARK RD 
SAWMILL ROAD 

~ Ivy Lane 
17855 WALKER DR 

17150 STANDARD DR 
1751 PULASKI HIGHWAY 

12646 JENKINS ORCHARD ROAD 

lSS HILL LANE 

I1ile Road 
WE 

,o'oo"'d"'Sm"'j'-li ~~:C!:~:",ET,_R_0_0_M_80!_ 

iiNCH"R'iT 
NE US 40 HWY 

440 East 63rd Street 
4367 Duncan Ave 

1293 Market Ridge Dr. 
17149 HUNGRY FISHERMAN DRIVE 

;outh ColleQe Street 

i3849r 

ENUE NORTHEASl 
iWAY66 
rHEAS1 

,TA BLVD SW 
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WICHITA 67207 Lead 
OVERLAND PARK 
WICHITA 

~ 
IKS 

Lead 
Lead 
Lead Allen 

IFERNCREEK 

.OUISVILI 

.OUISVILLE 

'UISVILLE 
Louisvill 

Louisville 
PHILPOT 

1 KROTZ SPRI NGS­

~ 
LEBEAU 

IMETAIRIE 
OAKDALE 

I Bolton 
BURLINGTON 

DEDHAM 
WALTHAM 

IBERL 
BOWIE 

Greenbelt 
Greenbelt 
Hanover 
HAVRE DE GRACE 
POCOMOKE CITY 

SALISBURY 
IBloomfield Hills 
Detroit 

DINA 

3ALLWI 

KANSAS CITY 

1ST. LOU 
. Ridgeland 

1 SOUTHAVEN 
;harlotte 
alei~ 

<Y 
<Y 
<Y 

KY 
KY 
KY 

KY 
KY 
KY 

LA 
Li\ 
LA 
Li\ 
Li\ 
MA 

MD 

MD 
MD 

~MD 

MO 

MO 
MS 

~MS 

INM 

10291 Sulfuric Acid 
10299- lead 

140272 
10245 

10204 
10206 

40207 
40214 
40212 

40217 
40241 
40216 

40241 

14236E 
(4039i 
70750 
70506 

71358 
170005-
71463 

101740 
101803 

~cid 

Sulfuric Ac 
Sulfuric Ac 
Sulfuric Ac 
Sulfuric Acid 
~ 
iulfuric Acid 
~ 
~ 
Sulfuric Acid 
~ 
Sulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Leae 
Le8c 

furic Acid 
~ 
~ 
furic Acid Lead 

20770 Lead 
21076 Lead 
21078 Sulfuric Acid 
21851 Sulfuric Acid 
21804 Sulfuric Acid 
48302 Lead i 

Lead 

Lead 
Lead, Diesel 

64131 Lead 
63110 Lead 
39157 Lead 
38671 Sulfuric Acid 
28202 Lead 
27609 Lead 
08854 Lead 
87114 Sulfuric~cid 

ISulfuric Ac 

2001-200 

"''2001To03 
2001-2003 
2006 

"''2001To03 
2006 

2006 
ToOO 

2006 
ToOO 

2001To03 
2004 - 2006 

2001-2003 
2001-2003 
2001-2003 

2001To03 
2001-2003 
2oii3 
!001-2003 

~ 
~ 

2005 - 2006 
2004 - 2006 

2004 - 2006 
2001-2003 

1-2003 

"7006 
-2006 

2001-2003 
2004 - 2006 

: 
20C 

2001-2003 
2001-2003 

2006 

2001-2003 
2001-2003 
2001-2003 

2006 

2005 - 2006 

2005 - 2006 

x 

x 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 
X 

x 
X 

X 

X 

x 



PASEO DEL NORTE 4915 PASEO DEL NORTE 

UNSER & CENTRAL 518 AIRPORT RD 
INDIA~ 

SHIRK 
PARADISE - VENTANA RANCH 
4TH & PASEO DEL NORTE - EL PUEBL 

494 98TH STREEl 

~_DER_RY 

496 IMADRONE 
497 IRIO COMMUNITIES 49s -

rBUTTE 

'KI RESORl 
CIA 

506 IBELLA VISTA 
507 IELOSO 

~8\QEL PUEBU 
509 ENCINO 
510 NORTH RIC L-EL RINCON ANIMAL HOSPITAL 

511 ISANDIA PARK 
TRACK 

,AN GULCH 

CANYON 
) AKA SANDIA CRESl 

519 
520 

521 
522 IBaldwinsville 
523 

li!ney Rd MTSO(6398) 
liden Lane(6425) 

Morrisl 

)swego 1 

530 
531 Sackets i 
532 Rockwes 

Y(0122) 

,South (4018) 

533 Syracuse MTSO(993) 

534 ICincinnati MTSO 
!veland MTSO(1301 E. 9th Street) 
lumb 
yton 

WI 
IRTI 

rkomal 
)KCEI 
lWIN 

004) 
)N 

13) 

543 Non:;stc;wn---"lSC(3000) 
544 Phitadetphia~S:~(2000) 

545 IPottstown MSC(4000) 
546 IRINCON 

:EE 

ON DRIVE, 
2363 HIGHWAY 47 

24 OLD H~HWAY 60 
1737 HIGHWAY 116 
ISEECO CREEK DRIVE 
174b Waldo Canyon Rd. 

HEASl 

95 YAPPLE CANYON ROAD 

ONG DRIVE 
14 

,66 

CA 

3402 10TH AVE, 

4192 HIGHWAY 528 

112500 NORTH HIGHWAY 14 
147 BATAAN BOULEVARD 
152 OLD LAS VEGAS HIGHWA) 

; SCOTTROA 

lESl 
, 66 

'ASl 

'ECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 13 S, RANGE 4W 
TOWNSHIP lOS RANGE 4W 

SEC 7 TOWNSHIP 12S RANGE 4W 
2394 Ellsworth Road 
6145 County Route 21 
600 Whitney Road 

12040 Maiden Lane 
~ Groveland Road 
3 State Route 55 
Thompson Road 
Ventura Road 
Cedar Ave 
County Route 75 
I West FayeHe Street 

, Smith Street 
1036 Liberty Street 
1301 E 9th Street 

1325 E Spring Street 
13591 Salem Ave. 

CLAYTON TWP RD 146 
~ E. Aurora Rd 
; Yocum St. 
1 S Douglas Ave 
)SH CREEK ROAD 

1934 Madison Avenue 
940 

349 Circle of Progress 
,BCJ# 411, KM 75 PICO CANTA GALLO ATALAYA WARD 
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~RREY 

IBELEN 
BELEN 
BOSQUE 

IBOSQUE 
CA 

,OS 

IANT BUTTE 

,N 
£MITAR 

I MORIARTY 
I MORIARTY 

~RANc:HO 

ISANDIA PARK 

TRUTHORCC 

TRu'TH'ORi 
TRu'TH'ORi 
BaldlNinsvilie 
Canton 
Fairport 
~reece 

;roveland 
.ittle Falls 
)swego 
~ 

Sackets Harbor 
Syracue 
Syracuse 
Cincinnati 

!veland 
lumbus 
yton 

WLEXINGTON 
rthfield 

,rkoma 
)klahoma City 

Norristown 
Nor~i_~t~n 

I Pottstown 
I Rincon 

~
M 

NM 

NM 

INM 
INM 

INM 

IJ>l~ 
INM 

lJ>IM_ 

iI!'L 
[NY 

~
A 

PA 

PA 

IPA 
IPR 

'930 
187002 
87002 
87006 

18701 

187' 

'035 

187035 
187144 
87144 
87124 

187047 

87901 
87901 

87901 
1302; 
136' 

144' 

603 
13685 
13204 

13224 
145214 

144' 

19403 
19403 

19464 

100671 

Sulfuric Acid 
S~!f!:!~~ Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Ac' 

ISulfuric Acid 
ISulfuric Acid_ 
I~ulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

~Acid 

Ifuric Acid 
S~ 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Leae 
Leae 
Leae 
Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Leae 
Leae 
iulfuric Acid, Lead 

Lead 
Lead 
Lead 
Lead 
Lead 
Lead 
Leal 
Leal 
l...ea( 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Leae 

Sulfuric Acid 
Lead 

Lead 

Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Lead 
ISulfuric Acid 

2006 
2005 - 200§ 

2005 - 2006 
- 2006 

2005 - 2006 

2005 - 2006 
2005 - 2006 

~ !006 

~ ~006 

2006 
2006 

2006 
- 2006 

2iiOO 

20 106 

20 106 

~006 

2005--=2006 
2005 - 2006 

~ 

2001-2003 

2003 
2003 

"To03 

20' 

20' 
__ ~Ol 

)1-2003 
)1-2003 

2006 

"""'2Ooi'To03 
"""'2Ooi'To03 

2001-2003 

2006 

x 
X 

X 
X 
x 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 



548 I Pawtucket 
54'9 IColumbia Swil h(091-039) 

550 ICR13061 
551 

BARTLEl 
IDALE 

:H51 LAND IND 
;W2) 

lS3109ANC ~NE HVILLE 

556 INS3175 RIVERGATEEASl 

559 INS3169 RIVERGATE SOUTH 
560 NS3167 CINEMA 16 

561 MTSC 
562 ICRlll0UNION 

~RBORAVENUE 

IWA\ 

LVIS 

IRBYQUINCE 
S3215 GREENLAND 

571 NS3251 MURFREESBORO HOUSING AU 

572 NAS M 
573 NS3179 PENNINGTON BEND 
574 NS3163 INGLEWOOD REL' 
575 NS3026 ANTIOCH 

\ustin I 
,M~ 

W 
LESi 
Iway Data I 

Ri:iNGENi 
rso at 1195 Post Oak(MTSO 

583 iMTSO at Fair HW(MTSO 3) 
564 IMTSO at Dunlavy(MTSO 2) 

565 IHC PINE PARK 
566 ISEEDLING 

ubboc 
1idlan( 
jrubb I 
:Ianco MSC(SAN4702) 

BEAR GARDEN 
595 IEASTVILLE 

596 
59i 
598 IMADISON 

lOCH FORK 

ER! 

°ECTWOSl 

(1041 

JNGVIEW NORTH 

607 iKent Distribution I 

150 Royal Utile Dr. 
1140 Stonemark Ln 
6453 QUAIL RIDGE DR. 
7044 MEMPHIS ARLINGTON ROAD 

11406 WEEKS DR NE 
1434 Keough R( 

JMN CREEK DRIVE 

ERSTRAIL 
) HILLS DRIVE 

treet 
'RlYLANE 

OMAROAD 

HELMA STREEl 
6056 EXECUTIVE CNTR 

165 UNION AVENUE 

2166 WHARF 
2466 SOUTHERN AVE 
3320 COMMERCIAL PARKWAY 

BLVD 
iSi'EiOi""" 

AS PIKE 

STREEi 
r;';B;:ri~Ck~C:";h"'u=rC;:;h ~Pi~ke~ 

14D PENNINGTON BEND ROAD 
3629A GALLATIN PIKE 
5646 AMALIE DRIVE 

15827 East Ben White Blvd 
12400 Lacy Lane 

Terre Colony Court 
Drive 

Iway 
;t Expressway 83 

LOOD north. #190 

Dunlavy 
5:306 PINE PARK 

13 GLEE LANE 

16914 62nd Street 
1505 W Francis 
1022 Grubb Road 
18610 Blanco Rd 

, NE LOOP 410 STE910 
)76 E, CASCADE DRIVE 

AST 1550 SOUTH 

153 SLEEPY CREEK ROAD 
FF; 

502 OLD PLANK RD 
'422 EMBRY ROAD 

IAPPROX 3 5 MILES NW OF MADISON OFF RT 652 

IWEST SIDE ROUTE 301 
r 623 APPROX 31M N OF RT 22 977 CHOPPING RD 

11452 Isaac Newton Sq. 
670t RUMSEY LANE 
626A GUNNERY HILL ROAD ROUTE 1514 

ROXBURY MIL 
ROUTE 11 AT THE COUNlY LANDFill 
2222 RIVER ROAD SOUTH 

5834 S. 196th Street 
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I Providence 

Columb 

IBARl 
IBARl 
1 CLEVELAND 
ICollierville 

:noxv 
~AD 

~AD 

~AD 

IMEMPHI 
IMEMPHI 
MEMPHI 

MEMPHIS 
MEMPHIS 

HIS 

liS 
iiS 
115 

NASHVILLE 

INASHVILLE 
INASHVILLE 

IAustin 

Icarrollton 
,DALLAS 

--rESs 
;armers Branch 
IARLINGEN 

~ 
~ 
iouston 

HOUSTON 
HOUSTON 

LUBBOCK 
MIDLAND 

Isan Antonio 
lan Antonio 
lANANTONIO 

JNCTION 

OCUSTGROVE 

IMADISC 

IMILFORI 
IMINERAL 
1 Reston 
ISPOTSYLVANIA 

1 SPOTSYLVANIA 

~DSTOCK 
KELS 
K;.;t 

IRI 
ISc 
!TN 
!TN 
!TN 
!TN 

TN 
TN 

TN 
TN 
TN 

TN 
TN 
TN 

TX 
TX 
iX 

TX 
TX 

iX 
iX 
TX 

iVA 
iVA 
iVA 
iVA 
iVA 

102904 
129210-
36135 
36135 

137312 
[3801j 
36016 
37334 

1106 

~ 
136116 
36116 
36116 
36115 

3721' 
176741 

75234 
75212 
76039 

79424 
79701 

76219 
76258 
I782ij 

2272i 
122514 
f23i1j 
I2oi9o 
22553 
2255, 
2255~ 

22664 
96626 

980, 

ISulfuric Acid. Lead 
Lead 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

ISulfuric Acid 
Lead 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
~ 
Lea( 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Lea( 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 

~cid 

\cid 
~ 

Sulfuric I 
Sulfuric Acid 

Lead 

ISulfuric Acid, Lead 
ISulfuric Acid, Lead 
Lead 
Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Sulfuri~ Lead 
Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Sulfuric Acid, Lead 
Lea( 
Leac 
suih.-lic Acid 
Sulfuric Acid 
~ 
ISUlfuric Acid, Lead 
Lead 
Lead 
ISulfuric Acid 

3ulfuric Ac 
ISulfuric Ac 
!Sulfuric Ac 
ISulfuric.Ac 
Lead 
ISulfuric Acid 

\.cid 
\cid 
\cid 
i;Cid 
~ 

2001-2003 
2004 - 2006 

2004 - 2006 

2001-2003 

2006 
2004 - 2006 

2000 
2001-2 
"ToO 

2005 - 2006 

2oOi"To03 

2006 

2006 
2000 
2000 

2006 

20 

2002-2003 
2002-2003 

2001-2003 
iOiTo03 
)1-2003 

ffi01ToO 

2001-2003 
2001-2003 

200t-2003 
2001-2003 

2004 - 2006 
)04 - 2006 
iQ.i"":2ijI 

20 
201 
201 
2001-2003 
2004 - 2006 

2004 - 2006 
2004 - 2006 
2004 - 2006 

~ 
~ 

x 

x 

x 

X 

X 
x 

X 
X 

X 
X 
x 
X 

X 

X 

x 
X 



* Reporting Year is the calendar year for which the chemical inventory information is submitted under Section 312, and natthe year duling which the information is sUbmitted. 

For example, a Section 312 chemical inventory report for Reporting Year 2009 concerns chemicals stored on-site during calendar year 2009, although the report is required to be submitted by March 1, 2010. 
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• Reporting Year is the calendar year for which the chemical inventory information is submitted under Section 312, and not the year during which the information is submitted. 
For example, a Section 312 chemical inventory report for Reporting Year 2009 concerns chemicals stored on-site stored during calendar year 2009, although the 
report is required to be submitted by March 1, 2010. 
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